UNITED
NATIONS CAT

; ; Distr.
Convention against Torture GENERAL
and Other Cruel, Inhuman

CAT/ C/ SR. 290

or Degrading Treatment 9 May 1997

or Punishment Original: ENGLISH

COW TTEE AGAI NST TORTURE
Ei ght eent h sessi on
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 290t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Friday, 2 May 1997, at 3 p.m

Chai rman: M. DI PANDA MOUELLE
CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Second periodic report of Paraguay (continued)

ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (conti nued)
FUTURE MEETI NGS OF THE COW TTEE (conti nued)
ACTI ON BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY AT | TS FI FTY-FI RST SESSI ON:
(b) EFFECTI VE | MPLEMENTATI ON OF | NTERNATI ONAL | NSTRUMENTS ON HUVAN

RI GHTS, | NCLUDI NG REPORTI NG OBLI GATI ONS UNDER | NTERNATI ONAL
I NSTRUMENTS ON HUVAN RI GHTS

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 97- 16410 (E)



CAT/ C/ SR. 290
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (agenda item 4) (continued)

Second period report of Paraguay (continued) (CAT/C/29/Add.1
HRI / CORE/ 1/ Add. 24)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. G nénez Cabral, Ms. Casati and
Ms. Alcaraz Cafiiza (Paraguay) took places at the Comrittee table.

2. M. G MENEZ CABRAL (Paraguay) said that the new draft Penal Code was
currently before the Chanber of Deputies. He had obtained firm assurances
that it would be adopted by 15 May 1997

3. Wth regard to the inclusion in Paraguayan | egislation of a definition
of torture based on that contained in the Convention, the draft Penal Code did
not normally define offences, but specified the penalties to be inposed.
However, the follow ng notives for an act of torture were stated and
constituted a type of definition: the use of physical or nmental violence

agai nst a prisoner or detainee to obtain a confession or evidence or for
purposes of intimdation, nortification or humliation

4, Articles 590 and 615 of the Code of Criminal Procedure dealt with
extradition, which was based on treaties, the witten customary law in force
in the country requesting extradition or the principle of reciprocity.

5. Legal cooperation was based on reciprocity. Wen a request was made by
a foreign court to a Paraguayan court, the sole requirenent was that the

rel evant records should be clearly identifiable in the “Archivo del Terror”
docunent ati on centre.

6. Wth regard to the rights of suspects, questioning by the police
normal Iy took place in the presence of a |egal counsel who informed arrested
persons of their constitutional rights. Suspects were not forced to give

evi dence against their will. Statenents obtained from suspects during the
i nvestigation were considered valid only if they had been nade before the
conpetent judge. Al conplaints of physical and psychological ill-treatnent

by officials that reached the higher police authorities, the Ofice of the
Attorney-General or the Commi ssion on Human Rights and I ndigenous Affairs were
i nvesti gat ed.

7. There was no evidence that doctors had participated directly in acts of
torture under the previous regine. |In nost cases, their role had consisted in
i ssuing death certificates that concealed the true cause of death. He had no
i nformati on about doctors involved in the treatnment and rehabilitation of
victims of torture in public sector institutions and there was no re-education
programe for doctors, as no allegations of torture had been made agai nst a
menber of the medical profession

8. Persons of either sex who were under 22 years of age and had conpl et ed
secondary education were admitted to police academ es. They were all owed hone



CAT/ C/ SR. 290
page 3

only on weekends and qualified as police officers after three years of study.
In addition to a wi de range of general subjects, the curriculumcovered such
di sci plines as psychol ogy, nedicine, ethics and constitutional, commrerci al
crimnal and other branches of law. In the area of |aw enforcenent, enphasis
was placed, inter alia, on the control of drug trafficking and noney

| aundering, the handling of weapons and police psychol ogy. Many young police
of ficers attended courses abroad, particularly in Germany, the United States
and the United Kingdom Young people under the age of 20 were admtted to
junior schools for subordinate officers on conpleting basic education. Both
categories of establishment provided instruction in basic human rights
principles, the proper conduct of a police officer in the Iight of those
principles and international human rights treaties.

9. The Human Rights Protection Ofice within the Legal Departnent of the
M nistry of the Interior had nuch the same duties as the correspondi ng body in
the Mnistry of Justice and Labour. |In practice, however, its activities were
confined to the handling of conplaints of human rights violations by police
officers. 1t was headed by a fornmer nenber of Parlianment who was currently

serving as Director of Tacunbu prison

10. The bill referred to in paragraph 59 of the report (CAT/C/ 29/ Add.1) had
become Act No. 838, which provided for the conmpensation of the victinms of
human rights violations under the dictatorship. The provision for
conpensation for unlawful detention for a continuous period of over three
mont hs had been deleted. The period referred to in the Act was “over one
year”.

11. Under the Constitution and the Code of Criminal Procedure, an arrested
person nust be brought before a judge within 24 hours and nobody could be held
i ncommuni cado save by order of the conmpetent judge. The maxi mum peri od of
such detention was three days with the possibility of extension for a further
t hree days where substantiated grounds existed. The defence counsel was not
af fected by such rulings.

12. Mlitary service was conpul sory for mal es who had reached 17 years

of age. It had becone a tradition, especially in rural areas, for 14

or 15-year-old boys to sign up for mlitary service and it was not always
possible to nmonitor the age of conscripts. Mreover, nedical exam nations
were not always effective in weeding out the physically unfit and young people
had been known to die of heart failure during mlitary exercises. There were
i sol ated cases of ill-treatnment of conscripts and the culprits were subject to
prosecution by the military courts.

13. According to a report he had obtained fromthe National Police
Headquarters, over 100 police officers had been accused of ill-treating

i ndividuals in their charge under the previous reginme. To date, about 40 had
been dism ssed as a result of |egal proceedings. He had recently spoken to
three prison officers accused of ill-treatnment of prisoners. Two had left the
service voluntarily and the third had been disnmissed. H's case was currently
before the ordinary courts.



CAT/ ¢/ SR. 290
page 4

14. Conpl aints of police ill-treatnment could be filed with the Ofice of the
Attorney-Ceneral, the Parlianmentary Comm ssion on Human Rights, the Bicamneral
Commi ssion of Investigation, the Human Rights Protection O fice of the
Mnistry of the Interior or the national police authorities thenselves.

15. The Prisons Act prohibited the detention of accused and convi cted
persons in the sane |ocation

16. Al t hough peasants suffered from econonic injustice and the unequa
distribution of wealth, they were not evicted fromtheir |ands, but were
removed by court order fromprivate property on which they had been squatting.
They were frequently responsible for the deforestation of woodl and property or
used the land to cultivate narcotics.

17. The guarantees provided by the Constitution included
unconstitutionality, which was proclained by the Suprene Court, three
different types of habeas corpus (preventive, reparative and general)
(HRI/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 24, para. 146) habeas data concerning the right of access to
police and other records and the right of anmparo (protection).

18. Wth regard to the rank of treaties, he drew attention to paragraphs 162
and 163 of docunent HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 24.

19. There had been no state of energency since the advent of denocracy. The
condi tions governing states of energency were set forth in paragraphs 13 to 23
of docunent CAT/ C/ 29/ Add. 1

20. Menmbers of the Suprenme Court were appointed froma list of three

candi dates submitted to the Senate by the Judicature Council. There were nine
menbers altogether. The Judicature Council proposed to the Suprene Court the
nanmes of candi dates for offices in the | ower courts.

21. Wth regard to irrenovability, judges were initially appointed for a
five-year termof office. |If they remained in office for a further two terns,
they acquired security of tenure until the age of 75.

22. The constitutional division of the Suprenme Court was responsible for
exam ning and ruling on the constitutionality of |aws and regul ations and for
deci di ng whether to declare final or interlocutory judgenments invalid on
grounds of wunconstitutionality. The constitutional division could be invoked
directly; it was also possible for other courts to refer matters to its
jurisdiction.

23. Consci enti ous objector status on religious grounds was authorized by the
Constitution. Conscientious objectors were not physically ill-treated, but
they were called effem nate and psychologically ill-treated.

24, The del egation of Paraguay withdrew.

The neeting was suspended at 3.50 p.m and resuned at 4.20 p. m




CAT/ C/ SR. 290
page 5

ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (agenda item 2) (continued)

25. M. BRUN (Secretary of the Comrittee) read out the list of country
rapporteurs and alternate rapporteurs for the reports submtted by States
parties to the Convention for consideration at the Cormittee's nineteenth
session in Novenber 1997. The country rapporteurs and alternates were,
respectively, M. Gonzal ez Poblete and M. Zupancic (Argentina), M. Pikis and
M. Zupancic (Cuba), M. Burns and M. Sorensen (Cyprus), M. Camara and

M's. Iliopoul os-Strangas (Portugal), M. Gonzal ez Pobl ete and
M. Di panda Mowuell e (Spain) and M. Di panda Muel |l e and
M's. 1liopoul os-Strangas (Switzerland). The consideration of the report of

Guatemal a had al so been reschedul ed for the Novenber neeting. No country or
alternate rapporteurs had been chosen for France, Gernmany, Guatemrala, New
Zeal and, Norway or Peru.

26. Ms. |LIOPOULOS- STRANGAS asked whether it was not premature to choose
the rapporteurs for reports schedul ed for consideration at the May 1998
session of the Comittee.

27. M. ZUPANCI C said that, if any menbers of the Conmittee were up for
re-election prior to the May 1998 session, it might be equally premature to
take a decision in Novenber 1997.

28. M . SORENSEN said that, since the elections would not take place until
after the Novenber session, the Conmittee mght as well take a decision on the
matter imediately, at least in the case of CGuatenal a.

29. Ms. |LIOPOULOS- STRANGAS said that other, nore urgent country reports
m ght be submitted in the interimand that nmenbers of the Conmittee m ght w sh
to change their assignnents.

30. M. CAMARA said that the Committee al ready knew which of its nenbers had
mandat es extending into 1998. Personally, he preferred to know which reports
he was responsible for as far in advance as possible.

31. M. BURNS said that he was not allowed to serve as rapporteur for
New Zeal and, but volunteered to do so for the reports of Germany and Norway.

32. M. SORENSEN said that he volunteered to serve as rapporteur for the
reports of Norway, Germany and Guat enal a.

33. M. GONZALEZ POBLETE said that he was willing to work with M. Sorensen
on the report of Cuatenala. He was, however, already schedul ed to introduce
the reports of Argentina and Spain at the Novenber session and hoped that he
woul d not be required to introduce two country reports as closely together as
he had done at the current session in the case of Mexico and Paraguay.

34. M. PIKIS said it was wong for Comrittee nenbers to allow its nenbers
to volunteer to serve as rapporteurs for country reports. The Committee's
wor k shoul d be distributed at randomon a strictly equitable basis. He was
unwi lling either to volunteer or to agree to anyone el se doing so.



CAT/ C/ SR. 290
page 6

35. M. CAMARA said that he agreed with M. Pikis. Random selection would
avoi d any suspicion of subjectivity and would ensure that all nmenbers of the
Commi ttee had equal workl oads.

36. Ms. [LIOPOULOS- STRANGAS said that she agreed with M. Camara and

M. Pikis. It was also inportant to ensure that the same Committee nenber was
not al ways assigned to the reports of a particular country. Since the
Committee's docunents were available in translation, there was no need to
distribute country reports on the basis of |anguage. To allow Conmittee
menbers to volunteer to serve as country rapporteurs was not conducive to
objectivity. In the past, nmenbers who had not vol unteered had been forced to
serve as rapporteurs for the reports that no one el se had want ed.

37. The CHAIRMAN said that the Committee had al ways assigned country reports
on a volunteer basis in order to facilitate the work of the rapporteurs. He
asked whether the Conmittee had in fact been accused of a |ack of objectivity.

38. M_. ZUPANCI C said he thought that the Conmittee should follow its past
practice. M. Conzéalez Poblete's introductions of country reports had

provi ded an excel |l ent exanple of the fact that country rapporteurs needed
famliarity with the legal systemof the country in question in order to read
between the lines of reports.

39. M. YAKOVLEV said that the nmenbers of the Conmittee were experts who
were supposedly equal with regard to the law, the Convention and States
parties. It was also inportant for the Conmttee's workload to be equitably
distributed. It was desirable, but not essential, to take account of

i ndi vi dual nenbers' areas of linguistic and | egal expertise. He suggested
that, after consultation with the secretariat, the Chairman shoul d nom nate
country and alternate rapporteurs and submt the nom nations to the Commttee
for its approval

40. M. GONZALEZ POBLETE said that he had no intention of taking on all the
reports for Spanish-speaking countries, but could agree to work primarily on
Spani sh-1 anguage reports. The annexes to reports, such as |egislative texts,
and the reports of smaller non-governnental organi zati ons were, noreover, not
necessarily subnmtted in one of the Conmittee's working | anguages - and yet
those docunents were often very useful. According to the Comrittee's rules of
procedure, such organi zations were not allowed to address the Comm ttee, but
they m ght sonme day be, as was the case in the Conmittee on Econom c, Socia
and Cul tural Rights.

41. M. PIKIS said that the Comrittee was conposed of 10 experts who had
been appoi nted precisely because of their expertise; there was one Convention
to apply and all experts were equal. A system should be devised that would
maxi m ze the Conmittee's contribution and enable it to work as collectively as
possi ble. He proposed a rotation system which would be objective and
consistent. Proceeding through the list of Committee menmbers, A and B lists
woul d be established for country rapporteurs and alternates, and, after every
five countries considered, the list would be exhausted. |If the “A’ person was
unabl e to serve, he or she would be replaced by the “B” nane on the list and
then take the next case slated for that person. He did not agree with

M. Yakovl ev about | eaving the decision up to the Chairman.



CAT/ C/ SR. 290
page 7

42. M. CAMARA said that attention nmust be paid to the universal character
of the Committee. Linguistic, cultural or regional criteria could not be
favoured, as the Convention was an international instrument that went beyond

| anguage and culture. For the sake of objectivity, it would be a good idea to
have country rapporteurs deal with regions other than their own.

43. M. SORENSEN said he agreed that the Committee was universal in
character and that its work should be distributed equally, but recalled that
it was also trying to make the reporting systemnore effective. Although the
four working | anguages were equal, it was a big advantage if at |east one of
t he rapporteurs knew the original |anguage of the report and if both the
country rapporteur and the alternate spoke the sane | anguage. He therefore
hesitated to adopt the sort of automatic rotation system proposed by

M. Pikis.

44, M. GONZALEZ POBLETE said that any rigid procedure adopted by the
Committee m ght be counter-productive. He trusted in the Chairman to take
decisions with assistance fromthe secretariat. Any automatic system would
provi de for nmore equitable distribution, but some countries were nore
difficult in any case. Criteria were needed, but they should not be rigid.

45, M. BURNS said that a system where the Chairman distributed the case

| oad woul d be the nost effective. He would be pleased if the Chairnman
assigned countries on the basis of equity, but using criteria of
effectiveness. Reports in Spanish tended to be nmore difficult, with certain
political nuances that he in particular would have trouble dealing wth.

46. M. REGM said that he agreed with M. Burns.

47. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the Bureau could manage the distribution of
countries according to the various criteria that had been proposed.

48. M. PIKIS said that an automati c systemwas sinple and easy. As |ong as
personal disqualification was still possible, such a systemwas the best
solution for ensuring inpartial justice and equity.

49. M. SORENSEN said that he agreed with the Chairman. |In the appoi ntnent
of rapporteurs, the workload on article 19 and on article 22 should be taken
i nto account because, in many ways, the latter involved nore work than the
former.

50. M. CAMARA said that, since all nenbers of the Comrttee seemed to agree
on the criteria, the Chairman and the secretariat could do the assignnents.

51. M. ZUPANCI C said that the Chairman should distribute both the reports
and the comruni cati ons, requesting advice fromthe Bureau, as in any case his
deci sions were open to debate by the Committee.

52. M. YAKOVLEV said he agreed that the Chairnman's proposals were open to
debat e.



CAT/ C/ SR. 290
page 8

53. The CHAI RMAN suggested that he should distribute reports and

comuni cations. |If he heard no objection, he would take it that the Comm ttee
wi shed to suspend its decision on 1998 country rapporteurs until its next

sessi on.

54. It was so deci ded

FUTURE MEETI NGS ON THE COWM TTEE (agenda item 7) (conti nued)

55. M. ZUPANCI C read out the following draft letter fromthe Chairman to
the Secretary-General conveying the Cormittee's request for an extra week of
wor k:

“Having in mnd both the tragic inportance of the Convention
agai nst Torture and the persistence of the abhorrent practice of
torture, the Cormittee against Torture urges the Secretary-General to
request the Ceneral Assenbly to authorize six working days to enable the
Conmittee to function effectively.

In its regular annual report to the Ceneral Assembly (Oficia
Records, Fiftieth Session, Supplement No. 44 (A/50/44, paras. 208 and
209), the Committee already explained the need for an additional regul ar
session of one week's duration due to the great conplexity of its work
the intensive pace of its operations resulting fromthe increase in the
nunber of States parties to the Convention, the new cycle of periodic
reports submtted by States parties, the increasing vol une of
i nformati on received under the inquiry procedure and the grow ng nunber
of communi cati ons submitted under the individual communications
procedure.

The Committee hereby reiterates this urgent request to your
Excel l ency in view of these sanme reasons and w shes to add the
followi ng: keeping in mnd the unfortunate budgetary constraints at the
United Nations, the Comrittee proposes the sinple extension of its
present sessions for an additional six working days. This would not
result in any additional travel expenditures for the expert members of
the Committee. These additional six working days would, however, permt
the Comrittee to deal with the rising backlog of cases. It would al so
enable the Commttee to deal with sone nore reports of States parties at
each session and to devote nore time and attention to individua
conmuni cati ons.

On this occasion, the Cormittee also reconfirms its deep
convi ction concerning the critical inportance of its mission, as well as
its enpirically supported belief that the functioning of the Conmittee
so far has already proved to be decisive in the radical reduction of the
abhorrent practice of torture, as well as in the enhancenent of other
goal s expressed and inplied in the Convention against Torture. Wile we
appreciate that only limted resources are available in the budget of
the United Nations, we feel that the work of the experts on the
Conmittee could and should be met with the mninmal additiona
expendi ture described above.



CAT/ C/ SR. 290
page 9

In anticipation of your support for the cause of conmbating torture
in the world, we should like to express our ..., etc.”

56. Ms. [LIOPOULOS- STRANGAS said that the letter should refer to the fact
that the Cormittee was a snall one consisting of 10 nenbers, whereas the other
Committees had 18 nenbers. It should also nmention the fact that the situation
had worsened since the Cormittee's |last report to the CGeneral Assenbly. Was
it not the Conmttee's intention to request five, rather than six, additiona
wor ki ng days?

57. M. ZUPANCI C said that the request should be for five days.

58. M. PIKIS said that the choice of the word “tragic” in the first

par agraph was unfortunate; it should be deleted. He also had reservations
about the penultimate paragraph, as he disagreed with the statenment that the
functioning of the Cormittee had been decisive in the reducti on or enhancenent
of the practice of torture. The Committee's work was being used, but the
Conmittee should not blowits own trunpet. It was not seeking extra work
because of the persistence of torture, but because of the workload inposed by
t he Convention and because it was trying to avoid a backl og.

59. M. SORENSEN said that the Committee should provide details on the
backl og of work and the nunber of comruni cations and periodic reports it had
to deal with in order to substantiate its request for |onger sessions. It
shoul d al so refer to CGeneral Assenbly resolution 51/87 in connection with the
need for human rights treaty bodies to be given sufficient resources to
overconme existing difficulties with their effective functioning. The nenbers
of the Committee should urge the representatives of their countries to support
the request when it was submitted to the General Assenbly.

60. M. YAKOVLEV said that the words “new cycle” in the second paragraph
shoul d be replaced by the words “significant rise in the nunber” to enphasize
the fact that the budget allocated to the Cormittee when it had been set up
was no |onger commensurate with the nunber of States parties to the Convention
or the larger volune of conmunications. The Conmittee should consider whether
it would be appropriate to provide figures on how nuch the extra working days
woul d cost.

61. M. CAMARA said it should be enphasized that the length of the
Committee’s sessions had been determned at a time when the workl oad had been
significantly lighter and that the volume of work had grown to such an extent
that a failure to extend the Comrittee’ s sessions could seriously inpede its
wor k.

62. Ms. [LIOPOULOS- STRANGAS said that the Committee should meke it
clear that the extra days would not place a great financial burden on the
Uni ted Nati ons.

63. M. BRUN (Secretary of the Comrittee) said that the request for extra
wor ki ng days woul d have to go through the rel evant adm nistrative channels
that deci ded how the regul ar budget was allocated. The Comrittee should focus
on making it clear that it no | onger had enough time to deal with the vol une
of work.



CAT/ C/ SR. 290
page 10

64. M. ZUPANCI C suggested that the letter should be redrafted by the
secretariat to include the coments nmade by the nmenbers of the Committee.

ACTI ON BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY AT I TS FI FTY-FI RST SESSI ON (agenda item 8):

(b) EFFECTI VE | MPLEMENTATI ON OF | NTERNATI ONAL | NSTRUMENTS ON HUVAN
RI GHTS, | NCLUDI NG REPORTI NG OBLI GATI ONS UNDER | NTERNATI ONAL
I NSTRUMENTS ON HUMAN RI GHTS

65. M. BRUN (Secretary of the Comrittee), drawing attention to

General Assenbly resolutions 51/86 and 51/87 and Commi ssion on Human Ri ghts
resol utions 1997/38 and 1997/ 105, said that operative paragraph 5 of
resolution 51/87 referred to an anal ytical study that woul d conmpare the
provi sions of a nunber of human rights conventions and was designed to
identify duplication of reporting required under the instruments. He also
noted that the report of the independent expert on enhancing the |ong-term
ef fectiveness of the United Nations human rights treaty system had been
finalized.

66. M. SORENSEN said that, in the fourth preanbul ar paragraph of

resol ution 51/86, the General Assenbly had for the first time acknow edged the
exi stence of rehabilitation centres for victinms of torture. It was also
commendabl e that operative paragraph 20 of the resolution stressed the need
for training to be provided to arned forces, police personnel and health-care
workers in matters relating to human rights and the prevention of torture.

In view of operative paragraph 8, the Commttee should consider inviting the
Speci al Rapporteur on the question of torture to a forthcom ng session

67. Commi ssi on on Human Ri ghts resolution 1997/ 38 contai ned several new
points, particularly in operative paragraphs 7 and 11. The Committee shoul d
di scuss how it would proceed in respect of the proposed United Nations

i nternational day in support of victinms of torture and the total eradication
of torture, as referred to in operative paragraph 17.

The neeting rose at 6 p.m




